POLICY AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maul

MINUTES

October 12, 2015
Council Chamber,

Sth

Floor

CONVENE:

9:03 a.m.

PRESENT:

Councilmember Michael P. Victorino, Chair
Councilmember Don Couch, Vice-Chair
Councilmember Gladys C. Baisa, Member
Councilmember Robert Carroll, Member
Councilmember Elle Cochran, Member
Councilmember Stacy Crivello, Member
Councilmember Riki Hokama, Member
Councilmember Mike White, Member (In 9:08 a.m.)

EXCUSED:

Councilmember Don S. Guzman, Member

STAFF:

Kimberley Willenbrink, Legislative Analyst
Tammy M. Frias, Committee Secretary
Ella Alcon, Council Aide, Molokai Council Office (via telephone conference bridge)
Denise Fernandez, Council Aide, Lanai Council Office (via telephone conference
bridge)

ADMIN.:

Edward S. Kushi, Jr., First Deputy Corporation Counsel, Department of the
Corporation Counsel

OTHERS:

Marilyn Chapman, Vice Chairman, Maui Chamber of Commerce
Pamela Tumpap, President, Maui Chamber of Commerce

PRESS:

Akaku--Maui County Community Television, Inc.

CHAIR VICTORINO:
.. .(gavel) ... Good morning, and welcome to the Policy and
Intergovernmental Affairs Committee Meeting of October 12, 2015. It's 9:03 at this
time and I'd like to welcome everyone that is here and joining us out there in TV land.
I would like to start by introducing the Members who are present at this time. I'd like
to introduce our Vice-Chair of the Committee, Mr. Don Couch.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Good morning, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Good morning. I would also like to recognize the young lady from West
Maui, Ms. Elle Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aloha. Good morning, Chair.
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CHAIR VICTORINO:
Good morning.
Ms. Stacy Crivello.

And also the young lady from

Molokai,

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Aloha, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO:
Aloha.
Mr. Riki Hokama.

Also our representative from the island of Lanai,

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Good morning, sir. And I'd like to recognize also Robert Carroll from
East Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: And Ms. Baisa, Gladys Baisa, from Upcountry.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Good morning, Chair. The old lady has arrived, thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: I never said anything like that so please don't put words in my mouth in
that area. No, please.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I wasn't putting them in your mouth, they're in mine. Thank
you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. And then hopefully joining us later will be
Mr. Mike White, the Chair of the Committee and excused for today's proceedings is
Mr. Don Guzman, the Vice-Chair. From the Administration we have Mr. Ed Kushi,
First Deputy Corporation Counsel.
MR. KUSHI: Good morning.
CHAIR VICTORINO:
Good morning, sir. Our wonderful Staff, our invaluable Staff,
Ms. Kim Willenbrink from, our Legislative Analyst.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: And Tammy Frias, our Committee Secretary. This morning we don't
have any interactive communication with the Hana Office, it's closed today and we
were unable to get anyone out there for today's meeting. But we do have Lanai Office.
Let me check if they are connected. Denise Fernandez, are you there?
MS. FERNANDEZ: Good morning, Chair. This is Denise Fernandez on Lanai.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you and good morning. Ella Alcon from our Molokai Office, Ella,
are you there?
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MS. ALCON: Good morning, Chair. This is Ella Alcon on Molokai.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Good morning, dear. Before we get started I would like to ask everyone
to please turn off their cell phones or any noise-making devices. Decorum will be
followed in the Chamber. We have five items to discuss today and five of those items
were, are on the 2016 Maui County Legislative Package. I would like to begin by
taking public testimony. At this time, we have one testifier in the Chamber and then if
no one else then I will go to our District Offices. With no objections, I would like to
start public testimony.
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Our first testifier is Marilyn Chapman and she is
representing the Maui Chamber of Commerce and she will be speaking on PIA-4(1).
Good morning, Marilyn .
. . .BEGIN PUBUC TESTIMONY. ..

MS. CHAPMAN: Good morning. Good morning, esteemed Councilmembers, Council, and
Staff. The minimum wage ... my name is Marilyn Chapman and I represent the
Chamber of Commerce as the vice-chair. The minimum wage is an entry wage and
affects 2 percent of Hawaii's workforce. Minimum wage is the very bottom of the pay
scale within some companies only used for the unskilled, mentally, or emotionally
disabled person that is unable to work without supervision and otherwise most likely
would not be employed. Even then, employers such as the company I work for already
start these same unskilled, emotionally and mentally challenged people at $9 and
increase them to $10 within 6 months if they can do the job and show up for work and
simply make a probationary period of 6 months. Minimum wage is not supposed to be
a living wage. It's an entry level or training wage. These people are expected to do
their job well, improve their skills, gain experience and continually move on to
positions of higher responsibility or better jobs with the experience gained from the
last position. In closing, regardless of the sentiments involved with minimum wage, a
48 percent increase over a 12-month period will crush employers that are supporting
their own families and employees and employees' families through their businesses.
Maui's small business owners are not getting rich and large businesses do not pay
minimum wage. Thank you very much.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Ms. Chapman. Any questions or clarifications for the
testifier? Seeing none, thank you. We don't have anyone else in the Chamber that
wishes to testify so let us check with our District Office. Let's start with Lanai.
Denise, do we have anyone wishing to testify?
MS. FERNANDEZ: There is no one waiting to testify on Lanai.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Mahalo, Denise. Ella, is there anyone on Molokai wishing to testify?
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MS. ALCON: There is no one here on Molokai waiting to testify.
CHAIR VICTORINO: And seeing no one else in the Chamber, with no objections, I will close
public testimony for this morning.
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections .
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..

CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Okay, got it?
ITEM PIA-4(1):

MAUl

COUNTY

LEGISLATIVE

PACKAGE

(2016

MAUl

COUNTY

LEGISLATIVE PACKAGE) (CC 15-158)

CHAIR VICTORINO: As you are aware, the package that we introduced to the State
Legislature during the odd years and anything that has not been acted on carries over
from the following even year. Last year Maui County introduced two bills of which two
are still alive; one amending the Sunshine Law to allow board members to jointly
attend public meetings; and the other was establishing a program for each island to
study industrial hemp. Unfortunately, neither bill has been heard by a committee.
We will continue to offer our support for these two bills so they are both still alive and
hopefully will get some look-see's at this coming legislative session. This year we have
five bills that were submitted to this Committee for consideration as part of the Maui
County Package. We will discuss each one separately. Before I start I'd like to
recognize the Chair ofthe Council, Mr. White, and his presence.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Good morning, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Good morning, Chair. Okay. First one is the Committee is in receipt of
correspondence dated September 17, 2015, from Councilmember Elle Cochran,
transmitting a proposed resolution entitled Approving for Inclusion in the 2016 Maui
County Legislative Package a State Bill Prohibiting Smoking in Motor Vehicles
Occupied by Minors. The purpose of the proposed bill is to authorize for inclusion in
the 2016 Maui County Legislative Package a proposed State bill entitled A Bill for an
Act Relating to Smoking. The purpose of the proposed bill is to prohibit smoking in
vehicles which are occupied by minors. I will ask the introducer of the bill if she
would like to give an opening remark. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes, and thank you very much, Chair. And this has been
brought to at least my office's attention for several years now actually and I know it's
been in discussion on Hawaii Island and I'm looking to just sort of mirror that, what
their proposals are and to appease the people who feel that it's sort of a safeguard for
the minors who really don't have a choice or option at that point if an adult in the car
is smoking and they're going to have the secondhand smoke effects. So it's pretty
straightforward in the resolution of what the intent is and just looking to see if this
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body is willing to move it forward to see if we can push something out of this
Committee on to our HSAC package. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Yes, Ms. Willenbrink?
MS. WILLENBRINK: Maui County Package?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The Maui County, yes. The Maui County Package.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. I will ask everyone if they have any comments starting with
you, Ms. Baisa, and working right across.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Actually no comments. I think this is kind of common sense.
You know we have pretty much said that and proven that smoke is detrimental,
secondhand smoke is detrimental and we\re gone pretty far in, you know, outlawing
smoking in many public areas. It would make sense that in an enclosed area like a
car where a baby or young children are present it makes perfect sense to me that, you
know, it's probably not a very good place for adults to be smoking. So I think it's a
good idea. I am concerned though that each one of these smoking or, you know, we
have all of this legislation prohibiting smoking and it's piecemeal. There's one piece
here and one piece there. I'm beginning to think if pretty soon we're not going to have
to get to some omnibus thing and, you know, my husband who is a smoker says if you
guys are so against smoking, why don't you just outlaw cigarettes. And I said well,
who knows? But anyway, no concern, Chair. I can support this.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Madam Chair. Mr. Carroll, do you have any comments?
Because I know you were working on something like this recently also.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I think it's appropriate, now think it's the time for it. Our
ultimate goal of course is if the general public would give up smoking to tell you the
truth. It's bad for the health, it's bad for children, it's bad for everyone. And anything
we can do to get the word out there and to prohibit smoking where it is harmful to
others we need to pursue it. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I agree with Ms. Baisa that this is a
well-known threat to young lives that are in cars with people that are smoking. So I
support moving this forward. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I'm kind of interested Police did not submit any
comments.
CHAIR VICTORINO: No.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You know for me I have issues with over-governing and being
too ...
CHAIR VICTORINO: Can you speak up, Mr. Hokama? Because Ms. Baisa cannot hear you
and I can barely hear you. Please.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: One of my issues is being too big brother. And so I can see us
doing this for public vehicles. It's a general public policy that we do anyway. But
private vehicles, is that an extension of intruding on privacy? I think there's big
things we should think about and not just focus on a very specific point in a larger
discussion, Chairman. So while I have the .. .I don't have a problem with public
vehicles. I would say I have a concern on whether or not intrusion in privacy should
be addressed and viewed in its proper perspective. And I don't know how we are going
to enforce this to be honest. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair. I really can appreciate such a proposal
and I thank Ms. Cochran for bringing it forward. But I also have concerns that we put
laws into place that how do we enforce it. Somehow or other we can use an awareness
education process for young people throughout the school I think is a good way to get
the message across. But my concern is with enforcement.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Ms. Crivello. Mr. Couch?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And I echo Mr. Hokama and Ms. Crivello's
comments. How are we going to enforce it? Maybe it's something that can be
secondary to another traffic stop. I do understand that we need to be concerned about
our children's health but it's one of those things that's it's a, as Mr. Hokama said it's a
privacy. How much are we invading on privacy and, you know, that one's a thin line.
So at this point I'd like to hear some more. I do want to make sure that, you know,
we're helping the kids as much as possible but where do we draw that line? So I'm
still contemplating this one. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. And, Ms. Baisa, you had something else you wanted to add
before I close the testimony, I close this down? Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes, thank you very much, Mr. Victorino. One of the things that
I wanted to mention and I had so much I wanted to talk about, you know, about
smoking. I've noticed, and this is very strange because I hadn't seen this for a very
long time, but in the last couple weeks at least twice I have been in the back of a car
where the driver threw away the cigarette butt out the window and that bothers me a
lot. And we talk about enforcement so, you know, as a citizen what do you do? You
know I remember the famous story of our former Mayor Tavares who used to be a
police officer pulling somebody over and giving them, doing a citizen's arrest because
he saw them throw a butt out the window. Well, I'm not that brave and we're not
living in Mr. Tavares' time either. It's kind of dangerous to, you know, show any kind
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of anger or try to stop somebody. I'm not that brave. But it bothers me. Because, you
lmow, the more laws we make, the worse this is and I think citizens themselves have
to be educated and understand that they have a responsibility to protect their
children. But I don't lmow how we make people do that and I share the concerns of
my colleagues. You lmow I grew up with a father who was a smoker and as a child I
was very sick. I had hay fever and asthma, really, really, bad. And as I got older and
got away from the three-pack-a-day Camel smoker all that disappeared. So I lmow, I
lmow what we're talking about and how important it is that we try to protect the
children. But how do we do that again without trampling on personal freedom?
CHAIR VICTORINO: You lmow you all raise very interesting points. I can say my father
smoked almost all his life. He was a cigarette smoker and then he went to cigars and
then he went to his pipe. But two things was his golden rule; he never smoked in the
house, he never smoked in the house, and he never smoked in the car. He'd smoke in
the farm, he'd smoke outside, but he never, never did that and I remember that as a
kid. That was kind oflike his rule. He never said it but it was his rule. And I always
used to ask my mom how come daddy doesn't smoke in the house and she said no,
dad never smokes in the house. That was my ... that's what we're talking about;
common sense, some common sense. We're trying to legislate common sense. I think
this is really where the trial, the trouble in my mind comes, that's number one.
Nothing against you, Ms. Cochran, I lmow where you're going with this, and both me
and Mr. White have talked ... not Mr. White, but Mr. Carroll and I have talked about
this because I was going to introduce a very similar one but again along the lines of
public vehicles, not private. I wasn't going to the private. And the other issue is
enforcement. And where's the next step, in the house? How do you enforce in your
home? So I mean we are taking this to the umpteen level and I'm not against it
because I lmow and you lmow cigarette smoking, secondary cigarette smoke is
harmful to others around you. There's no question, we're not making an issue of that.
But how do we enforce it? And again with public vehicles I agree, you lmow, that's
something we control. We have care, custody, and control of that. But for the rest I
think it's very difficult and I lmow, Mr. White, you have your business that you have
non-smoking in your rooms and all that. And now there's pretty substantial fmes like
$250, I was at a hotel, they had the signs. If you smoke in this room, it's a $250
charge to your bill. Oh, okay I'll get you, not too many people smoke in that room.
You lmow I think these are the kinds of things that, you lmow, really we've got to look
at, common sense. But again I don't lmow how to apply this. And then fmally
enforcement. The police right now can barely keep up with what they have. I see so
many people with cell phones driving around. I lmow the police catch some but the
vast majority don't get caught and we still have some major accidents because people
are not paying attention, texting, and so no matter what laws you put in place, those
who don't want to follow are not going to follow it and so you're back to square one.
And I don't lmow unless the fme is so exponentially expensive people are just not
going to pay attention until they get caught, right? So I'm open to suggestions
because again I do agree with you, Ms. Cochran, you lmow, I'm just afraid we've got to
legislate common sense and the enforceability becomes another issue and how much
do we go when you're talking private life and what you do behind closed doors, I don't
lmow. But to harm our keiki like beating them up or something, hey that'd be the
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same thing. So, I'm open to suggestions. Ms. Cochran, you have anything you'd like
to add?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair, and I appreciate my fellow Members
comments especially in the realm of the enforcement part, and you brought up the
point in regards to cell phone use while driving and I see that every day all the time.
And again like you saw people flicking cigarettes out the car window, that citizen's
arrest thing it doesn't come to my mind but I'm just like hey, against the law, put it
down you know as I'm driving by the people. But, you know, it's education awareness
that this is a no, no. The seatbelt law too, back in the day when I started driving there
was no seat, you know, you never have to. It's wasn't this click it or ticket thing
happening campaign. And now it is and every, it's prevalent, everyone uses it, it's just
the automatic habit. So I think the whole idea of education and awareness brought
that there's a law in place, this is what it states, please abide by it, and the ones that
don't we'll catch, you know, the ones that can and yeah there are ones that are going
to slip through because they choose to not abide or probably don't know of it. Or ... so
again I think it's a process of it being in place and then rolling it out, implementing it
and making sure that everyone's aware. Educate the schools, wherever, you know, in
the doctor's offices, in places where people are contained and can hopefully get the
message across. So I'm still in favor of moving this out and, you know, I'm open to
suggestions and amendments if anybody has them. And that's why it's a pretty basic
straightforward resolution here. And so that's what it's here for, for us to work on.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Further discussion? Yes, Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I'd like to say, you know, this idea of common sense, Chair, you
are so correct. You know many of these things that we\re had to legislate is really sad
because everybody knows that looking in your cell phone and texting and taking your
eyes off the road is bad. But we do it and the only deterrent that stops people a whole
bunch, and not all, because I run in to the people that are busy on their cell phones
too. But, you know, we're more aware and so we kind of inhibit some of it. I think
we'll get the same result with this law that, you know, kids will tell their parents you
can't smoke in the car because they read or they heard someplace that it's against the
law. And maybe parents will pay attention. But it's really, really sad that we have to
do this. And again I think our focus has to be as a community or as a State, more on
education so that people understand. You know I'm very grateful that my husband is
a considerate smoker. You know my father didn't know any better. I'm sure he
wouldn't have smoked in the house if he knew. But my husband's really good. He
doesn't smoke in the car, he doesn't smoke around me because he knows I'm allergic
and I appreciate that a whole lot. But I think the answer to what we're doing here is
awareness and education. And I agree with Ms. Cochran, maybe we just pass this and
we try and we know we're not going to be able to stop everybody from smoking in the
car with their kids. But it does create that this is a bad thing and you shouldn't be
doing it, I don't know. And of course I'm also sensitive to the idea of stepping on
people's rights because, you know, I live with a smoker so I hear the other side of it.
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He says, you know, this is what I like to do. I'm not bothering anybody. So what's the
problem? You know I get both sides.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Well, you know, I think I'm going to make my recommendation and see
how this moves along. My recommendation is approving for inclusion in the 2016
Maui County Legislative Package a still ... a State Bill.. .I got this "still" thing in my mind
this morning, I'm sony, a State Bill Prohibiting Smoking in Motor Vehicles Occupied
by Minors.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, so moved.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Second.
CHAIR VICTORINO: It's been moved and seconded. I think we've discussed the matter. Yes,
Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, we have in one manner that that's correct. I'll say
though strategically are we passing out something that the Legislature because of
maybe the way we're presenting the proposal will not even see the light of a hearing?
What is our goal? To get a hearing? Then I think we should be strategic to make sure
it's palatable enough that what is presented is ready to be posted. If it's going to be an
issue of multiple referrals and whatnot-CHAIR VICTORINO: Yup.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --you can consider it dead for the whole biennium. So, what
is our goal?
CHAIR VICTORINO: I agree.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I would say I would recommend this Committee consider
something that we feel can be presented and at least get the light of day. Once you get
a hearing, you can say you want to broaden it and maybe put into the private
component. But I think you leaving enough legal questions and issues, I think there
will be more concem about money than policy this coming session. So I would say I
would just recommend we support something where under public vehicles at this
time.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Yes, Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. You know I understand where Mr. Hokama
is coming from. But my feeling is that if we're going to pass something out that's just
going to apply to public vehicles then, you know, we're not really doing much. If you
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think that it's hard to enforce on private vehicles, it's even more difficult to expect the
police to watch out for public vehicles where there's smoking, and generally public
vehicles are not carrying people's children, they're just carrying other employees of the
State or the County. So I support this measure as it's been proposed and I think that
the, you can let the State Legislature decide what to do with it. I think like the law
against being on cell phones in your car, this will have the same effect. I mean
whether it stops everybody, probably not, likely not. But if it stops some people then
we've begun the process of educating people that this is not something you should be
doing to your own kids or relatives. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Seeing no more ... yes, Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And that was a good point because in my mind public
vehicles was anything that had a public utilities license so that would be taxis,
shuttles, vans, buses, anything that transports under a license. They're regulated,
you can control. You have an enforcement mechanism already in place. So that is
why I had recommended that consideration, Chairman.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Alright, if not, then I will call for the question. All those in
favor as this bill has been proposed, signify by saying "aye."
COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Opposed?
COUNCILMEMBERS: No.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Roll call.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Councilmember Robert Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Councilmember Gladys C. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Aye.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Councilmember Elle Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aye.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Councilmember Don Couch.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: No.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Councilmember Stacy Crivello.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Aye.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Councilmember Riki Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Council Chair Mike White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Aye.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Committee Chair Michael Victorino.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Aye.
MS. WILLENBRINK: That would be ...
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. So it's six, two, yeah? Six, two was the vote. Six "ayes," two
"nays," and one excused, Vice-Chair Guzman.

VOTE:

AYES:

Chair Victorino and Councilm.embers Balsa, Carroll,
Cochran, Crivello, and White.

NOES:

Vice-Chair Couch and Councilm.ember Hokama.

EXC.:

Councilm.ember Guzman.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

Recommending ADOPTION of resolution approving for inclusion in
the 2016 Maui County Legislative Package a State bill prohibiting
smoking in motor vehicles occupied by minors.

CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. I'm going to take a quick recess. . . .(gavel). ..
RECESS:

9:29 a.m.

RECONVENE:

9:32 a.m.

CHAIR VICTORINO: .. .(gavel)... The meeting of the Policy and Intergovernmental Affairs
Committee will reconvene. Next on the agenda is item number two which is a
correspondence dated September 18, 2015, from Councilmember Elle Cochran,
transmitting a proposed resolution entitled Approving for Inclusion in the 2016 Maui
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County Legislative Package a State Bill to Increase the Minimum Wage to $15.00 Per
Hour by 2019. The proposed ... oh excuse me, the purpose of the proposed resolution
is to authorize for inclusion in the 2016 Maui County Legislative Package a proposed
bill entitled A Bill for an Act Relating to the Minimum Wage. The purpose of the
proposed bill is to amend Section 387-2, Hawaii Revised Statutes, to provide that
every employee shall be paid, every employer I should say shall pay each employee
employed by their employer's wage at the rate not less than $15.00 per hour beginning
January 1, 2019. I will also give the introducer an opportunity to speak to the
resolution. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And thank you very much, Chair. And this one is mirroring
pretty much, there's many states that are already implementing this and it kind of in
line more Seattle and also Kauai County has set forth the resolution on their behalf
too. So it's pretty plainly stated as you can see on the breakdown of the intent and the
State Leg. already has a program rolling out that, you know, goes through the next
several years too on their proposed wage increase. So this is just adding onto their
2018 and then the following year 2019 price range to be brought up to this Fight for
$15 campaign. So it's just something I wanted to see if my fellow Members are
interested in wanting to push forward and support and that's what I have it here for
today. So thank you, Chair. Looking for further discussion.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. We'll start with you, Mr. Couch, and move right down the
chain again.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This is one that while I understand the intent
and what everybody is trying to do, the question is, is minimum wage supposed to be
for a living wage? It's at least when, you know, when we were getting into the work
force minimum wage was for somebody in high school or wanting to just get into the
workforce to do a part time job. It wasn't to provide for a full family. That was the
whole idea was to get in to the workforce, get some skills and then move up to a job
that eventually you can provide for your family. Now people are saying that minimum
wage has to be for providing a living wage. If that's the case, why not make it $25 an
hour or $30 an hour? Because that's what the living wage is going to be. So I still
think minimum wage is for entry level into the workforce. I kind of disagree with what
the Chamber said as far as only learning, people with learning disabilities and
whatnot, it's for people who are just coming out of or in high school wanting to get a
part-time job to help supplement their income, you know their allowance or whatever
they might be getting from their parents. It's not for somebody to live on in my
opinion. But that's my opinion and at this point I can't support.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair. I can appreciate Ms. Cochran's attempt
to have this increase I guess in 2019. But I have to question how it, what kind of an
impact it would have on our employers especially in the rural areas where they would
maybe have to hire less than 25 and most of them are mom and pops or what have
you, and then aside from that even the nonprofits you have all the payroll taxes, the
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medical insurance will they cut back on that part where their hours are going to be
cut back? Even like the disability insurance, payroll, everything that comes with the
payroll deduction, and of course the business do pass that on to us consumers. I'd
like to see what sort of impact or research can be done so we can understand what
impact it would have on the businesses that we do businesses [sic] with. We know for
a fact that our fuel, electric, just about everything especially in the rural areas we, it's
the highest cost of doing business. and then we question skill levels. If I have to think
back when I first started into the workforce I didn't even make a dollar as entry level.
But I had to work myself up which many of us did to develop the skill levels that
would qualify us for an increase and gosh when you made 90 cents an hour you were
happy and thought you were the richest kid on the block. But, you know, I would
like .. .I don't know if I can support this at this time just because of the kind of impact
that it would have on businesses, especially with less than 25 employees and doing
business in the rural areas, and it's just difficult or else where are we going to fmd the
employers that will employ people if they start closing down because they can't afford
the upkeep in Hawaii? Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. In general I'm a supporter of always
increasing ability of our middle class or those wishing to be in the middle class, better
opportunities. But we must be I would say strategic in approaching this and knowing
the time of where we currently are sitting. For me, and again I'm looking at our sister
counties who are supporting this but they've delayed the target of the fmal
implementation date. I believe LA County is 2020 or 2021, and I'm not too sure but
Seattle, but they've made movements to increase minimum wage and in general I
think that's a good thing. We all should be moving upward together including the
employers. But saying that and looking at my situation that 3,000 people deal with on
Lanai I would say yeah, I would have a problem if it was just Palama Lanai, they have
a contract, they need to honor that agreement. But for my small businesses that are
basically family friends, neighbors, families that have sacrificed their, many of them
for a hundred years already and seeing what they would have to go through to meet
the minimum wage knowing there is no activity now basically, no hotel activity,
construction which is basically from off Lanai, I don't think our community can handle
this impact. So for me it's a very difficult decision because I do not want Lanai to
further suffer especially the Blue Ginger's, the Canoe's, the Pine Isle Market's, the Dela
Cruz stores, family operations. You know I wish it was better times where I can say
yeah they can afford $15 an hour but I know in the current timing they cannot,
Chairman. And so I would be looking at something if the Committee would consider
in a different target date, I'm more open to that. In the current form I cannot support
it like this. Because I would not believe it's in the best interest of Lanai. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I have similar concerns to those that have
been voiced already. But in addition to those I see this as a measure that would
certainly put a damper on the ongoing creation of summer jobs. You know we know
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that summer jobs have kind of gone away to some degree because of the economics of
it but this would make it even more difficult for our small businesses to be able to
afford this. And Ms. Crivello brought up the concern about healthcare. We all know
that healthcare costs have continued to rise and so to take something like the
minimum wage which in the past 8 years has increased by 7 percent from I think
$7.25 to $7.75. And then in the next 4 years, half of that time, taken up another 94
percent is a bit too big of a jump, and the other challenge with the minimum wage is
the tip credit which employers whose employee's generate their pay by virtue of tips,
whether it's in restaurants or in other areas, the tip credit is really quite small in
comparison to the tips that are generated. So we have a number of dynamics coming
to play here. But I don't think that Maui has the high population and therefore the
higher demand on services that some of these other municipalities have experienced
that have moved in this direction. So I don't think this is the right time and it's clearly
not a fair or equitable amount to be placed as a burden on our small businesses.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. White. Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Glad we don't have anything controversial today.
CHAIR VICTORINO: No, no, no. I try to bring the simple things up.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: You know it's really difficult because obviously it's going to
have a really great impact outside there. Trying to think about this because we really
want to take care of our people too. If it was $12 in 2020 I could accept it because it's
an increase, it's more in the future, it's more than the usual increases and we have
seen where Hawaii prices are going up and unfortunately those entry level jobs over
here, they tend to last for a long time. It's difficult. If we'll give this a try, if I could
propose to amend what is before us today instead of $15 per hour beginning
January 1, 2019 to be $15 an hour ... $12 an hour beginning January 1, 2020.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Before I accept any amendments I want to fmish the discussion and
then I'll consider amendments at that time. Okay, Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Alright. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much, Chair. As Member Carroll says, today is
a very light day I can tell. You know this is a hard one because when it comes to
wanting to give people more money, I think we all agree that that's something we'd all
like to do because we want to see people earning enough money so that they can live a
little more comfortably in one of the most expensive places to live in the country.
However, I think reality again we're back to common sense. We know that if we raise
the minimum wage it also means that prices will go up. And so how do you get
ahead? You know I remember when I started my first big job where I thought I was
earning a lot of money at MEO, I was earning $350 a month as its Chief Accountant
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and I thought boy now I'm living really well. Well, if I was earning $350 a month now
you know what that would mean. Prices have changed and so even though I earn a lot
more than that now I think that our standard of living has not changed a whole lot
from when it was then. So that tells me a lot. It's just numbers that get bigger but it
doesn't really change. I follow Mr. Carroll's logic because I was looking at this
schedule of increases that are already proposed and when we jump from 2010 in I
mean $10.10 in 2018 and then we go to $15 in 2019 it's a humongous change
whereas in the previous years, from year to years it's looking like 75 cents and the last
one is 85 cents. And so those increments are smaller and they seem to maybe not
hurt as much. So maybe it would be okay if we were to propose smaller increments
over a longer period of time. But to change this as much as is being suggested I think
is not only going to hurt the people that, the employers but it's going to hurt the
employees' buying power. The other thing that I think we need to keep an eye on and
Mr. White mentioned it and that is this cost of benefits. You know I'm afraid that if
businesses struggle to pay larger salaries that they will have less money to help with
benefits and so they may increase the amount that an employee has to contribute to
his medical plan or in some way reduce benefits so that they can afford to stay in
business and I don't know if anybody comes ahead. I have always been a big
supporter of benefits and I think that's been kind of a theme in government pay is that
we pay a little less but we give really good benefits. I don't want to see benefits
disappear and the reason is of course like if you don't have a good medical plan and
something happens you're in big trouble, and you may not see that cash in your
pocket every month for what your employer is paying for your medical plan but you
will if something happens. Also wages are all taxed whereas benefits, a lot of them are
not taxed. So you come ahead with more benefits than you do with a big increase. So
I think we need to take a really hard look at this, Chair. And thank you for bringing it
up and thank Ms. Cochran for also bringing it to us to talk about. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Ms. Baisa. You know across the board I've listened to all of
you and I share all the same sentiments. You know I share a lot of sentiments as far
as having livable wages. I support our unions and what they work for, and I've said
many times publically and I'll say it right in front of the Chamber, it wasn't the
Chamber and it wasn't the businesses that gave the vacations, the 40 hours, the
medical, it was the hard fought unions and they're, my father and many of them, who
fought hard to get what we have today. So thank our unions, thank our unions.
However, I cannot share increases like this at this time. I cannot because it makes it
very difficult for the mom and pop stores. The Walmart's, the Kmart's, the big
corporations they can afford it, they can. But the little guy can't. The Marmac's, you
know Ace Hardware, the small businesses, they're the ones that are going to be
adversely affected. They are adversely affected and those are the ones that I want to
protect. They've been around for a long time and I want to make sure that they have
an ability to continue to thrive in this economy. And, you know, the economy is so
tenuous. In fact, to be honest with you I've been able to talk with a number of
different people, restaurant, construction, suppliers, and everyone tells me to a point
that things have slowed down a little bit. People are afraid. The stock market has
come down tremendously. Every time the stock market slides people get a little afraid.
Consumer confidence is not at its highest level at this point. So with all that being
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said and what Mr. White added as far as tip, you know, I know tip employees who do
very well and if you were to pay them $15 an hour what then would you have to cut
back on? So where are the lines being drawn in this manner? I don't know. I don't
know if I even want to go $12 at this point in time to be perfectly honest. I really
would like to see the Legislature in their wisdom continue to work on this becomes, it
falls back on their, on ... when you're talking Seattle or Los Angeles County, I don't
know of any state except maybe New York that has increased the minimum wage.
Almost all of them are counties or cities, that's a little different. The big metropolis'
can. Can the little rural counties? Mr. Hokama can tell you many of them are still
struggling. They have not recovered from this downturn and some continue to be on
the edge of going bankrupt. All we need is one more downturn in the economy and
some of them will just collapse. So at this time I'm not really keen on this whole idea
of increases. And no offense to you, Ms. Cochran, I know what you meant and I'm all
for people making more. But again if you get a dollar more but you've got to spend $2
to, out there because you've got a dollar more per hour, I don't know. I don't know
where you break even in that deal. You know so, and it was kind of funny one more
thing I'll put in and nobody mentioned this that because of the drop in oil prices and
gas prices next year there is no COLA for Social Security. I think this is only the
fourth time in 40 years or third time in 40 years, I forget what it was exactly, and so
many of our seniors will not get any increase on Social Security and some of them
truly depend on Social Security. So I'm torn with this one. You know I get, I want
higher wages but yet on the other side I don't think it's the right time. But anyhow I
will stop there. I have done my lecture from the pulpit. I think now I'll get back to all
of you. So I will make my recommendation for the purpose of a vote, okay?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Recommendation?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah, so I'll make this recommendation. My recommendation is to
entertain a motion to adopt the proposed resolution entitled A Bill for an Act Relating
to ... oh sorry I went to the wrong page, an act to relate to the employers paying or at a
rate not less than $15 per hour beginning January 1, 2019.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, so moved.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Ms. Cochran, I'm sorry, no second. So, the motion dies.
ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion (resolution approving for
inclusion in the 2016 Maui County Legislative Package a State bill
to increase the minimum wage to $15.00 per hour in 2019).

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, not a problem, got to try.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Let's move on to our next item. Again correspondence
dated September 21, 2015, from Councilmember Elle Cochran, again, transmitting a
proposed resolution entitled Approving for Inclusion in the 2016 Maui County
Legislative Package a State Bill that Allows Persons with Disabilities to Indicate on
- 16-

POLICY AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE MINUTES

Council of the County of Maui
October 12, 2015

their Identification Card their Disability. The purpose of the proposed resolution is to
authorize the, authorize for inclusion in the 2016 Maui County Legislative Package a
proposed State bill entitled A Bill for an Act Relating to the Identification Cards for
Persons with Disabilities. The purpose of the proposed bill is to allow persons with
disabilities to indicate on their identification cards their disability. Again I will open
the floor to the maker of the motion, or the proposer of the resolution I should say,
Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And this has been brought to my
attention to have this particular ID on, you know, the actual ID cards and just to, for
helpful purpose for the person that it pertains to. You know I thank God my leg injury
isn't a permanent thing but, you know, I would like if something were to happen that
people would understand what certain disabilities are that pertain to my person. And
so this one here in particular other states have adopted and we were focusing on
legislation out of the State of Georgia, and it's again pretty straightforward here and
hoping to just bring more light to a person's personal needs if it should be, should
occur and a person would have to understand, you know, how to manage or help that
particular person through their ID. So that's kind of what it is and it states it in the
whereas' also, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Anything else, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, not at this time. Just looking for some discussion on
this.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. I will start with you, Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. This has been brought up before and one
of the ... a lot of people don't realize the reason for this, and the reason for this was
because let's say there's somebody that has extreme emphysema or something else
that really restricts their movements, very difficult for them to go anyplace. They
might not have a wheelchair or cane but they are very, very restricted physically.
Alright, these people, there's no identification on top there, people see the card, they
see the person get down, walk into the store, and they get ragged on, they get ragged
on. They get, people go there, they don't understand, they look well the person can
stand, he can walk, what the heck is he doing, you know, handicap parking space?
And this is why that was brought up before where it identifies emphysema, just that
one word on there. And just to make it so the poor person that really, really needs it,
he really needs the services that people look at it, oh yeah maybe they have it in
different color on top there identifying the handicap. And that would be voluntarily,
most people like me I mean who the heck in a wheelchair wants to go over there and
say I'm in a wheelchair. This is for those people that sometimes it's difficult to discern
if they truly have a disability. And I know some that are really extreme, I get around a
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hundred times better than them and they really need it and that was the purpose that
I was always, that was brought forward when I was with the Disabilities Commission
before. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: And again I think you brought a good note. It was voluntary, right?
This is not mandatory; you do not have to put this on your ID?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:
described --

No, it's voluntary because it's those people that I just

CHAIR VICTORINO: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: --that are the ones that need it.
CHAIR VICTORINO: And how would I know that if it's on your ID unless I ask you for your
ID?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: It's on, it goes on top the ...
CHAIR VICTORINO: On the placard?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: On the placard and on the ID card that you have, your little
ID card.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, because you said identification card and I, you know, so, no, I
just wanted clarification.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Well, I don't know exactly how this bill is, reads if it would be
on both or not, Ms. Cochran would have to clarify that.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, it doesn't actually, the whereas it's mainly ID cards-CHAIR VICTORINO: Identification, right?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --State, driver's license.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Any type of ID. Yeah, it doesn't mention placards which I do
have one myself now.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: And if they're allowed to do it like we tried to get the picture
on the placard for many years, the State has always blocked and given us all kinds of
BS with that because they don't want to pay for it. That would go a long way to
limiting the abuse of placards. This over here if it's allowed somebody could go over
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there and actually put on top, if it's allowed they can put their own thing on top of
there, emphysema or whatever. I would imagine since it would be allowed. Thank
you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Well, I like the idea of a placard with an, a picture. I think that's
intriguing; however, I used to take my mom to the doctor and then I'd drop her by the
front door and then go park and if somebody saw me and my mom's picture but I'm
not, I'm the one parking the car what would happen then? I mean just, interesting
discussion since we're talking about it. You know I'm just bringing it up.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:
It happens with my wife and sometimes people say
something because she drops me off and parks the car and she says it's for my
husband, he's in there. No problem.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. I just thought I'd bring up the question.
you're keenly aware of this also.

Ms. Baisa, I know

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes, thank you. And thank you, Ms. Cochran, again for having
the discussion and you, Chair, for putting it on the agenda. I don't have a problem
with this but I really am, I don't know how it's going to work because having it on your
ID card which is what this bill talks about, it doesn't say anything about placards, you
know, if that's in my wallet I don't know that the guy that, who's parked, you know, I
park in this space and the guy comes up to me and says what are you doing here, you
look like you're fine. What, I've got to pull out my wallet and show him that? You
know personally I don't think it's any of his business. But, you know, I don't know
how that would work. I do like the idea if you're going to have a license plate with a
disability sticker on it, that's a really good thing to have. But we already have that in
the law. If you're a person with a disability card, you can apply for a license plate. So
I don't know. I don't think we need to do anything with that is what I'm saying
because it's already there. You know as Mr. Carroll says it's very true that not all
disabilities are visible.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And there are many kinds of disabilities and I'm personally very
familiar with this. And what I like about this bill is the fact that it is an opt in or opt
out kind of thing. You don't have to do it. If you prefer not to do it, you don't have to.
But I don't know. I don't know how this is going to help unless it's important to a
person with the disability who needs to pull out a card and say, you know, I have a
disability and I'll disclose what that disability is. And then again you're getting into
very private information and what about right to privacy? But again because it's opt
in and opt out if you feel that it's private and you don't want anybody to know then
you don't have to ask for it. So I don't know. I think there's a lot of discussion here.
You know I was involved again at the formulation of ADA here in Hawaii. I was the
head of the State Commission on Persons with Disabilities when that came. So I'm
very familiar that there are two sides to all of these issues and we want to be sensitive
to the persons with disabilities and I would like to see this recommendation and
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support for this coming from those folks because, you know, I wish we could have
more discussion and maybe even have our own Commission on Persons with
Disabilities come and give us information or recommendation. I just don't know if I
want to vote yes or no on something like this without hearing from them.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. And, you know, I think that's a great option that I may
consider. But before I go there let me hear from everybody else because I think that's
an option I was considering to maybe sending this proposal over to the Persons with
Disabilities Commission and let them hash this out and maybe come back with some
viable alternatives or if they think this is good then bring it back to us and say hey we
like it, can we get it passed? So again, you know, another option. Mr. Couch?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I like this one, and just to read from the
essentially section one of the bill which is the purpose section; it says an identification
card clearly indicating the person's disability would allow the person access to certain
eligible public services such as special transportation and seating for persons with
disabilities at public events. That's one good benefit for this. Also, this would allow
the person with the disability to communicate any special needs to police and other
public safety personnel in the event of an emergency. That's an important part of this
one so it's if the person wants to opt in on it they can show their ID, you know, if
there's an accident or whatnot they can have on their ID some mention of their
disability so that the public safety folks can handle that portion. So I like those two
sections in the bill as for the purpose, so I can wholly support this one. Section 5-D I
have a little bit of a concern with. That's an identification card for persons with
disabilities shall be issued to a person with a temporary disability upon presentation
of a sworn affidavit. That seems like it'd be a little bit, a lot more work for whoever the
department, I guess it's going to be the DMV that handles this, that one I would be a
little bit concerned about but it isn't a deal-breaker on this. If we had that section out
there I'd be 100 percent behind this, but I still would like this bill to go to the
Legislature. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair. I guess Ms. Cochran has been quite busy
and I can appreciate this particular proposal and I think it, you know, we use our ID
even for traveling so sometimes, you know, you can't get through without all the
doctor's paper and what have you. So I think this also increases, makes sense kind of
opportunities for us, so I support the efforts that we're going to try and push this
through with the proposal. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, you know, I think we all recall the State being
taken to court because of again what is the allowable space usable on our licenses and
whatnot, our identification cards because the State shortened a last name of a lady
from her complete last name because she wan ted accordingly her whole legal name
and it became a matter of space on the license. So I would say, you know, maybe we
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would also either refer this like you say to the, our Disability Commission, I think
maybe we should maybe ask DMV if they're aware of restrictions of what is usable
space on the license or identification cards and then maybe go from there. I'm open to
all of the options. I think placards might be a good potential, decals on cars, on our
identification. I don't have a problem supporting and allowing our disabled to have
appropriate identification to utilize programs that we gear specifically for their use.
But I would say I think we need to be also responsible to know that we have certain
limitations of space and we should check out what are our limitations, Chairman.
Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I'm supportive of this measure. I think it's
something that can be pushed through at this point. Whether there's space or not, it
can be dealt with, and looking at the back of my license I have restrictions and
endorsements and there's a big blank space under that. So there may be adequate
space there. Of course with a last name like White I got a lot of space after my last
name but I'm not sure that that is where it would go. So I support moving this. I
don't think it needs to be referred simply because those discussions can take place
when it gets to the Legislature. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. And, you know, Mr. White, you bring a good point but I'll
counter with this; Ms. Crivello you mentioned about when you go to the airport and
disclosing you have disabilities, well, let me ask you, Ms. Cochran, if you have a pin in
there, now when you go to the airport, guess what happens?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Well yeah, Chair, I asked the doctor first thing, he said
there's not enough metal but I would have to disclose ...
CHAIR VICTORINO: But I have my wife who had a full knee replacement, yes. Those who
have full hip replacement, yes. Shoulder, there's many others, okay? Is that a
disability? Good question, right? So I disagree with you, Mr. White. I think we need
further discussion because there's all kinds of aspects that come up with this. I do
agree, I like what you said, Mr. Couch, about the identification so that it makes it easy
and that way it's on their license so when my wife and others go to the checkpoint it
shows. She has to tell them I had a full knee replacement and sometimes she forgets
and she goes through and buzz and then she has to go back and she says oh, I forgot
to say that. So is that a disability? In her mind it was an improvement but yes it is
now part of her life everyday now, every time we travel or if you go to the courthouse
or any place they have electronic devices to detect metal. Even when we were in Philly
to see the Pope, four times she had to go around the line and go complete check
because she has metal in her knee now. So there is some place for discussion and I
agree with you, Mr. Couch, maybe that removal might be also important, you know,
with the temporary because temporary is how long? I know you can get temporary
placards, they give you that because they asked if I wanted one when I hurt my knee
and I said no I dido 't think I needed one and I'm too much like a male chauvinist to let
that happen right, even wheelchair, I'm being honest, I'm being very honest. However,
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you know, so again this is one of those that before we send it to the Legislature I agree
with Mr. Hokama, let's make sure we have something strong, you know. And then
what would the cost being involved in doing this and who's going to bear the cost?
That's another issue. Again we keep putting things on DMV and yet we try to cut back
their budget. So if we're going to do this then we better be ready to incur some
additional expense because it would definitely cost more, especially people opting in
and out or somebody wants and somebody doesn't, yeah? So again I'll make the
recommendation and, you know, let's see where this goes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Can I...yeah just some added comments here. So and I
thank Mr. Couch for bringing up the point about emergency personnel, because that
was a key component in this legislation to have an ID that's going to immediately give
the information any emergency personnel may need to assist that person who may be
incapacitated, cannot speak, cannot share what their disabilities are, it'll be on their
ID and they can address it. And the other is in regards to Mr. Couch's point about
section D the temporary disability which I have so it was, I had an accident, the doctor
wrote temporary, gave me that temporary ID card that states why I have this placard
for my car and all this so and it's good for four months. And so this is where this
section what it's about so it's not, it doesn't go above and beyond how do you get this.
It occurs when you have something diagnosed perhaps as Mr. Carroll mentioned or for
me it was an accident so through emergency room and onto, you know, the doctor's
office it goes through the system and it's pretty straightforward and simple. Then the
other is this came through my office and it got pursued because of concerns for
mothers who have children with autism. Their children around the ages of 16 to 21
have been being targeted by police and other types of people because the way they act
perhaps and seem of a normal natural nature but it's due to their disability of autism.
And so these mothers who have been targeted, their families I guess being targeted
wanted something in black and white to state that can we put something on my child's
ID in order to show hey, look, and perhaps avoid such situations of these arrests and
whatever negative things have been occurring to their children. So that was another
thing that prompted my office to hopefully push this forward. And then I know there's
a deadline I think to submit our items into the package. So and that's why I
appreciate you pushing this onto your agenda today. And those are basically my
closing comments in regards to this legislation, Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Well, thank you. And so I will then now make my recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Recommendation?
CHAIR VICTORINO: The Chair would like to recommend the approval of the inclusion of the,
in the 2016 Maui County Package, Legislative Package, a State Bill to Allow Persons
with Disabilities to Indicate on their Identification Cards their Disability.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, I so move that.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Second.
CHAIR VICTORINO:
discussion?

Moved by Ms. Cochran, seconded by Mr. Couch.

Any further

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Question?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes, Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Just for understanding, on the resolution page we have a
approve and legality signoff by Corporation Counsel.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Does that also cover the attached bill for an act proposal?
CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. Kushi, would you like to answer that question?
MR. KUSH!: Well, these resolutions, the first time I've seen them. They haven't been sent to
my office to sign off. If you want me to sign off, I'll sign off.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Who's signature is this?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Who's signature?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: It's signed.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Who signed it?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Mr. Kushi, I just was wondering since it is signed off.
MR. KUSH!: It is signed?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: On the resolution. I'm just asking if the attached bill to that
resolution is also being attested to form and legality.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I'm not sure.
MR. KUSH!: If you're saying, if you're asking if our office reviewed the bill-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yes.
MR. KUSH!: --as to form and legality?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yes.
- 23-

POLICY AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE MINUTES

Council or the County or Maul
October 12, 2015

MR. KUSHI: No.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Okay, I'm going to call for the question. All those in favor, signify
by saying "aye."
COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Opposed? Seeing none, it passes eight-zero with one excused.

VOTE:

AYES:

Chair Victorino, Vice-Chair Couch, and CouncUm.embers
Balsa, Carroll, Cochran, Crivello, Hokama, and White.

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

CouncUm.ember Guzman.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

Recommending ADOPTION of resolution approving for inclusion in
the 2016 Maul County Legislative Package a State bill to allow
persons with disabilities to indicate on their identification cards
their disability.

CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Moving right along ... in fact you know what, at this point we'll
take a midmorning break. I was getting kind of like it's 10:15, we have two more items
so if you will be back by no later than 10:30, we can fmish up the morning's agenda.
This meeting will now stand in recess ... .(gavel) ...

RECESS:

10:15 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:30 a.m.

CHAIR VICTORINO: .. .(gavel). . . . . .Intergovernmental Affairs Committee will reconvene. At
this time ... well, the maker of this one is not here yet, he hasn't returned, oh here he
comes, okay.
This Committee is in receipt of correspondence dated
September 21, 2015, from Councilmember Robert Carroll, transmitting a proposed
resolution entitled, Approving for Inclusion in the 2016 Maui County Legislative
Package a State Bill that would Prohibit the Sale of Marine Life Secured by a Spear.
The purpose of the proposed resolution is to authorize for inclusion in the 2016 Maui
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County Legislative Package a proposed State bill entitled A Bill for an Act Relating to
Aquatic Resources. The purpose of the proposed bill is to prohibit the sale of marine
life secured by use of a spear. The introducer of the bill, Mr. Carroll, would you like to
make some opening remarks?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. Before it was always illegal in Hawaii to
sell speared fish. Then some time ago for reasons that we can't really understand, the
Legislature changed the rules that you could sell commercial fish. There was a lot of
testimony against it but still yet it passed. Our oceans and our reefs cannot take the
pressure of commercial diving for our fish. Recreational it can take it. There's not
that much. But as soon as you make it a commercial endeavor it's bad. We have a
very limited resource. These islands we don't have that much reef, especially Maui,
the Big Island, it's almost like a needle sticking up from the ocean floor. We cannot
take and continue to take the pressures of commercial speared fish, the spearing of
fish for commercial use. It has to be stopped or otherwise we're going to find ourselves
to where literally there is nothing out there for our people. I hope this can go through
and I hope the Legislature will take action on this. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Carroll.
across. Mr. White?

We'll start with Mr. White and move right

COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I appreciate Mr. Carroll's explanation. I would, I'm supportive of
this measure. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
Chairman.

If this will help our resource on Lanai, I'm all for it,

CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Carroll, for this attempt to
propose this through. I can appreciate how our practitioners I guess respect our
culture and then, you know, people like me and I guess even Mr. Hokama and many of
you out there too we love to eat our reef fish, I do. And to me when we do this we meet
the needs of the present without compromising the ability of our future generations
and to meet their own needs. So if it means you can't sell them, at least we can have
probably an abundance so that we can mea ai, when we want to eat this, whatever the
ocean provides for us. I have a question though. When we say sell means to transfer,
are we also talking about the retailers or only the commercial fishermen? And that's a
question that I leave open.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. Carroll, would you like to address that question by Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: That was ... please repeat that?
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: You know it's one thing for the fishermen to sell, does it also
penalize the retailer who accepts the speared fish and will be selling it?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: If the selling of speared fish is illegal, it would be illegal for
you to spear a fish to sell and it would be illegal for the store that you sold it to, to
accept the speared fish.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. Just looking for clarification. Thank you, Mr. Carroll.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. Couch?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And yeah I can support this one. I agree with
what's been said so far. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And I appreciate, and thank you,
Mr. Carroll, for bringing this forward, and I defmitely support this also. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: There's not a whole lot more to say. I like what Mr. Carroll is
proposing and I'm in full support. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: And I will close by saying ditto to everyone, and, Mr. Carroll, thank you
for bringing this forward. The challenge I face is if the Legislature changed it, will they
have the where-all to change it back? And that's all I got to say about that. So
without no further discussion I would like to make my recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Recommendation?
CHAIR VICTORINO: I would like to recommend the passage of the proposed resolution
entitled Approving for the Inclusion in the 2016 Maui County Legislative Package a
State Bill that Prohibits the Sale of Marine Life Secured by a Spear.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Second.
CHAIR VICTORINO: It was moved by Mr. Carroll, seconded by Ms. Crivello. Any further
discussion? Seeing none, all those in favor, signify by saying "aye."
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COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Opposed? Let the record show eight "ayes," no "noes", and one excused.

VOTE:

AYES:

Chair Victorino, Vice-Chair Couch, and Councilmembers
Balsa, Carroll, Cochran, Crivello, Hokama, and White.

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmember Guzman.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

Recommending ADOPTION of resolution approving for inclusion in
the 2016 Maul County Legislative Package a State bill that prohibits
the sale of marine life secured by a spear.

CHAIR VICTORINO: And finally for today's agenda we have a correspondence dated
September 25, 2015, from Councilmember Gladys C. Baisa, transmitting a proposed
resolution entitled Approving for Inclusion in the 2016 Maui County Legislative
Package a State Bill Authorizing County Liquor Commissions to Provide Funding for
Alcohol Abuse Treatment and Prevention. The purpose of the proposed resolution is to
authorize for inclusion in the 2016 Maui County Legislative Packet a proposed bill
entitled A Bill for an Act Relating to Intoxicating Liquor. The purpose of the proposed
bill was to require County Liquor Commissions to provide funding for alcohol abuse
and treatment and prevention, in addition to education and enforcement, within their
counties. And you know, Ms. Baisa, I wish you had, you should've taken this to
Honolulu because they're all meeting at Ala Moana this morning. All the liquor
commissioners are together in Honolulu. They have their annual meeting. I wish this
was available for them to review. But unfortunately we don't have it ready. But that's
okay. So, Ms. Baisa, would you like to make some opening comments?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much, Chair. I don't think that this requires a
whole lot of talk because we've seen it many, many times and I am hopeful that, you
know, water on a rock, maybe we'll make an impact this time. But I still believe that I
think that some of the money that is gotten from selling alcohol should be spent on
prevention and education and also helping with alcohol abuse treatment and we can
try one more time. Thank you.
CHAIR VICTORINO: You're welcome, Ms. Baisa. Ms. Cochran?
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Yeah I concur. We've seen this many
times over and I told Ms. Baisa earlier try, try, try again which hopefully we shall do
and totally 100, beyond 100 percent support this. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: You're welcome. Mr. Couch, I saw you shaking your head so then you
have no more comments, you agree wholeheartedly? Ms. Crivello?
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: .. .(inaudible) ...
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I agree.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, Mr. Hokama? Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I'd just like Ms. Baisa to refresh our
memories. The bill was voted down in previous times and I'm just wondering if there
are changes in the presentation this time that address whatever the issues were that
resulted in the bill's not making it through on previous attempts?
CHAIR VICTORINO:
Ms. Baisa, would you like Ms. Willenbrink to address that?
Ms. Willenbrink?
MS. WILLENBRINK: Excuse me, thank you, Chair. Thank you for the question. This bill did
get heard last year and it was revised according to Committee reports. I don't know
what those revisions are right at this moment, but I would also like to clarify that this
bill does take an additional step. If you 'lllook on Page 6, that it also provides at least
10 percent of the license fees are used for liquor-related treatment, prevention,
education, or enforcement programs. So it's not just fines any longer, it's also license
fees.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, and thank you for that. And I saw that and realized I
didn't recall seeing that last time it went through. So hopefully this will go. I think
it's, I think Ms. Baisa's fight has been a very righteous one and one that we should all
support. So thank you, Chair.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. And we can sum it up by saying, Ms. Baisa, the time has
arrived. I believe this is the time to really push it hard and see what happens. You
know again, you know, our Legislature has been pretty stuck in the mud when it
comes to this one. You know I just don't think they get the picture that, you know,
the cause is there so why not help the cause pay for some of the resulting challenges
our society faces? Okay. So, no more discussion? I'll make my recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Recommendation?
CHAIR VICTORINO: The Chair would like to entertain a motion to adopt the proposed
resolution entitled A Bill for an Act Relating to Intoxicating Liquors.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: So moved, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Second.
CHAIR VICTORINO: It's been moved by Ms. Baisa, seconded by Mr. White.
discussion? Seeing none, all those in favor, signify by say "aye."

Any further

COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR VICTORINO: Opposed? Let the record show eight "ayes," no opposed, one excused.

VOTE:

AYES:

Chair Victorino, Vice-Chair Couch, and Councilm.embers
Baisa, Carroll, Cochran, Crivello, Hokama, and White.

NOES:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmember Guzman.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

Recommending ADOPTION of resolution approving for inclusion in
the 2016 Maui County Legislative Package a State bill authorizing
the county Liquor Commissions to provide funding for alcohol abuse
treatment and prevention.

CHAIR VICTORINO: Ladies and gentlemen, that brings to conclusion our day. And for
having very simple items I guess it takes a little time to go through the discussion.
Our next meeting is November 2nd and I want you all to realize it's going to be a full
day's meeting. I've asked for a full day and I've been granted that. I think we hope to
accomplish a number of things but the most important item is this governance issue
that we're going to be taking up.
So, with no more discussion, no more
announcements and I guess we have Ms. Cochran's Committee meeting this afternoon
at 1:30, right? So, and I thank you, Ms. Cochran, for giving us that full day on
November 2nd, I truly appreciate that and I think the Committee appreciates that. So
with no further ado, this meeting of the Intergovernmental, I mean the Policy and
Intergovernmental Affairs Committee is now adjourned . . . .(gavel) ...

ADJOURN:

10:42 a.m.
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